______________________________________________4.0 PROPOSAL QUESTIONNAIRE

Vendors must respond to the proposal questions in this section in accordance with the instructions given in Section 2.0, Preparing and Submitting a Proposal.  Failure to provide all requested information, or to follow the requested response format, may exclude your proposal from further consideration.

4.1
General Questions

4.1.1
Organization Capabilities

The vendor must have the ability to administer the ERA and Commuter Benefits programs, respond to and maintain compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and policies and provide efficient and effective liaison with the Department.  The vendor must provide services to all state agencies and University of Wisconsin campuses with a total of approximately 65,000 eligible employees.  Answers to the following questions should address your organization’s ability to administer both the Wisconsin Employee Reimbursement Accounts program and the Commuter Benefits program. 

a. What is your company’s principal business?  Include information about your company’s ownership, number of employees, number of offices and locations.  Include any pending plans for your company’s expansion, relocation, consolidation, merger, acquisition, or sale.

b. Provide a description of any and all contracts currently held by your company with State of Wisconsin agencies, including the University of Wisconsin and related public authorities or entities.  The response must identify the entity, describe the services provided, and identify the length of the contract including the start date.

c. Is your company authorized to do business in the State of Wisconsin?  (Vendors who do not currently meet this requirement must provide evidence showing that the company will comply with this requirement before entering into a contract with the Board.)

d. Provide information about past contract performance.  The response must include specific detailed information regarding legal action(s), including pending actions, taken against your company in the past three (3) years, for:

1) Any and all situations where your company has defaulted on a contract to administer a benefit plan.

2) Any and all litigation regarding contracts to administer a benefit plan.

3) Any and all situations where a contract has been canceled or where a contract was not renewed due to alleged fault on the part of your company. 

e. Vendors responding to this RFP must be able to substantiate their financial stability.  Furnish a copy of your company’s audited financial statements from the last two years. Include, at a minimum, a Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statement, together with the name and address of the bank(s) with which you conduct business and the public accounting firm(s) that audits the financial statements.  The Department reserves the right to request additional information to verify your company’s financial status.

f. General Program Experience

1) Provide details of your company’s experience servicing clients with multiple employers with a variety of payroll systems.  Include a list of clients who have similar programs with multiple employers and multiple payroll systems that are currently being serviced by your company.

2) Describe your company’s experience with administering flexible spending account benefits. Provide a summary that includes the number of years that your company has provided such services, number and type (governmental or private) of clients, the total number of eligible employees, and the total number of actual participants that your company currently serves.  Identify those clients who are large employers with multiple payroll processing centers.
3) Describe your company’s experience with administering qualified transportation benefit programs. Provide a summary that includes the number of years that your company has provided such services, number and type (governmental or private) of clients, the total number of eligible employees, and the total number of actual participants that your company currently serves.  Identify those clients who are large employers with multiple payroll processing centers.
4.1.2
Staff Qualifications
Provide information about the proposed staffing for administration of the Employee Reimbursement Accounts program and the Commuter Benefits program.  

a. Provide an organizational chart or charts that indicate current or proposed positions assigned to both the ERA program and the Commuter Benefits program, at the local and home office level.

b. Will hiring additional staff be necessary to accommodate the Wisconsin program?  If so, how many and in what areas?

c. Identify key staff members who would have responsibility for the day-to-day operation of the plans. Identify the duties and scope of authority for each of the key staff who will be responsible for managing the programs. Include information about their professional qualifications and work experience in the following areas:  customer service, service to participating employers, enrollments, claims processing, information technology and data processing, accounting, and legal services.

d. The Department works directly with local and/or home office staff on all administrative matters.  Identify the key contact person who will be responsible for day-to-day contacts with the Department and describe their professional qualifications, work experience and scope of authority.

4.1.3 Vendor References
Selected organizations may be contacted to determine the quality of work performed.  The results of the reference check will be provided to reviewers and used in scoring the written proposal.

Use the Reference Sheets in Attachment 4 to provide three (3) references for each program.  Each reference must identify the company/agency for which you have provided services and the type of program administered (i.e. flexible spending account or qualified transportation benefit).  Detail should include the services provided including the number of eligible employees and the number of actual participants and contracts.  At least one reference should be a public sector employer plan with 50,000 or more eligible employees.

4.2
Technical Questions

Exhibits A & B provide program history and an outline of the functions and services that the Administrator of the State of Wisconsin Employee Reimbursement Accounts program and Commuter Benefits program currently provides. Provide a written response that reflects your understanding of the program requirements, the processes and procedures that will be used to ensure the requirements will be met and your company’s current operating environment and experience in providing the required services.  Proposals may include alternatives to current procedures, reports, etc. as is deemed appropriate to ensure the effective and efficient administration of the contract.

Scoring will be based on the quality of the approach and the ability of the respondent to meet the needs of each of the Programs.

4.2.1 Data System Capabilities
The Administrator must have adequate data processing capabilities to provide all necessary record-keeping and accounting functions to ensure complete, accurate and timely plan and participant account administration.  

a. Provide detailed information about the hardware and software that is used to administer both programs.  Include information about the record-keeping control policies and procedures that are in place to properly receive, disburse, audit, and reconcile both participant and plan accounts in the following areas:  

1) Enrollment processing

2) Payroll processing

3) Reimbursement/claims administration

4) Bank account reconciliation

b. Provide information about your company’s previous experience in providing record-keeping and accounting services for similar plans with multiple payroll reporting agencies and multiple payroll cycles using a variety of data formats, including electronic transfer via ftp, vpn, encrypted e-mail, and/or paper.  Include the name, area of responsibility, qualifications and experience of key staff responsible for the accounting and data processing systems functions

c. Will it be necessary for your company to purchase additional computer/data processing resources in order to fulfill the terms of your proposal? If yes, please explain.

d. Describe in detail the measures you use to protect the security and privacy of program data, records, forms, participant information, and data processing operations.  Include information about the physical security measures used to control access to your company’s systems and internal controls that are in place to reduce loss that may occur through fraud, negligence, incompetence, or system errors

e. Provide a description of your system back-up procedures

f. Provide information about your disaster recovery procedures in the event of an emergency, such as natural disaster, temporary staffing, (e.g. strike), etc.  Explain your procedures for off-site recovery of information and systems including the frequency of updates, retention schedule and schedule for disaster recovery testing.  Include contingency plans for continuation of critical business functions during an emergency. 

g. If any data processing system proposed or any of its parts is not owned and/or developed by your company, please explain what contractual arrangements have been made and with whom.

4.2.2 Claims Processing and Reimbursement
For each program—ERA and Commuter Benefits—provide the following information regarding the claims adjudication and participant reimbursement processes.

a. Describe your experience in providing claims processing services for Section 125 and Section 132 programs.  Indicate the number of claims currently processed and the number of claims paid each month for medical and dependent care accounts, as well as QTB accounts. 

b. Provide detail of the procedure and the criteria used to authorize or reject claims to assure that all claims paid are in compliance with applicable IRS Code and Regulations.  Include the quality control procedures and system edits used for controlling and tracking reimbursement requests.

c. Provide an example of an explanation of reimbursement that would be sent to a participant with their reimbursement.  Include examples of explanations sent to participants whose claim was partially or wholly rejected.

d. What is the average turnaround time and the guaranteed maximum turnaround time for claims processing currently provided for your clients.  (Claims processing turnaround time is from the date of receipt of a valid claim by the Administrator to the date a check is mailed or electronically transferred to the participant.  The turnaround time for dependent care and QTB claims may be counted from the time money is available in the participant's account to the date an authorized claim is paid.)

e. How do you handle the following:

1) incomplete claims (i.e. claims which are not or cannot be processed due to missing information or documentation),

2) dependent care claims that exceed available funds,

3) voided and reissued checks,

4) multiple contributions in a single reporting period,

5) contributions received in error,

6) reimbursement claims paid in error,

7) outstanding checks.

f. Does your company provide for direct deposit of participant reimbursements? 

g. Does your company offer online submission of claims (i.e. online submission of reimbursement requests through a secure web application)?  If you have this capability, would this be part of the initial implementation?

4.2.3 Enrollment
For each program—ERA and Commuter Benefits—provide the following information regarding the initial and ongoing enrollment process.

a. Provide a detailed written narrative describing the approach that will be used to provide accurate and comprehensive information about each Program's policies and procedures to eligible employees throughout the State. 

b. Furnish a detailed timeline of the steps that will be taken to ensure that all eligible employees are given the opportunity to enroll and that all necessary tasks have been completed to effect participant payroll deductions by the first pay period of 2006. (The first payday for employees who are paid monthly is January 1, 2006.  The cut-off date for check processing is mid-December, 2005.  The first payday for employees who are paid bi-weekly is January 5, 2006.  The cut-off date for check processing is late-December, 2005.)  Indicate what will be done, when, and who will be responsible for each step.

c. Describe in detail the process used to accurately enroll eligible employees in each program using a combination of IVR, internet, and paper.  Include information relating to employee accessibility, employee PIN's, process for handling inaccurate or incomplete submissions, data transfer and backup, etc.

d. Describe your company’s prior experience in conducting enrollments via internet and IVR, in addition to paper forms.  List clients for whom this type of enrollment has been offered, the number of eligible employees, and the number of employees who enrolled.

e. Describe, in detail, the security measures employed to assure the privacy and security of confidential information on the internet and IVR enrollment systems.

f. Provide access to IVR and internet enrollment demonstration sites, if available.

g. Provide an example of an enrollment verification statement and any program information that may be sent to participants upon enrollment in each program.

h. Indicate the proposed number of enrollment representatives that will be utilized to conduct informational sessions during the annual ERA enrollment period.  Include the qualifications of the enrollment representatives.  Describe the training that enrollment representatives will receive to educate them about proper enrollment and program policies and the procedure that will be followed by the Administrator to monitor the performance of the enrollment representatives. Include an outline of the topics that will be covered during the employee ERA enrollment/information sessions.

i. Identify the person(s) whose primary responsibility will be to coordinate enrollment activities, including supervision and training of enrollment representatives, if applicable.  Include their position, qualifications, experience, and location (local or home office).  Describe how enrollment responsibilities will be coordinated between the home and local office staff, if applicable. 

j. Describe the procedure used for processing mid-year enrollments for newly hired or newly eligible employees.  Describe the process to be used to add new employees when no data exists in your system.  

k. Provide detail of the procedure that will be followed when participants who experience a Change in Status (CIS) event wish to change their ERA election.  Include information about: 

1)  the staff who are responsible for processing the CIS requests,

2) the criteria used to approve or reject a participant's change request,

3) the process used to reinstate an employee after a lapse in coverage,

4) the method for calculation of the annual amount for mid-year contribution amount changes or enrollment.  

5) Include a sample form that is provided to participants who file a request to change their election amount due to a CIS and any material that will be provided to participants to communicate the requirements of CIS requests.

4.2.4
 Customer Service

For each program—ERA and Commuter Benefits—provide the following information regarding the customer service that will be provided.

a. Describe your company’s philosophy and approach to enabling customer service representatives to serve members.  Include a description of the initial and ongoing training, supervision, systems support, quality assurance, performance standards, and performance improvement measures offered to customer service staff.  

b. Describe your company's procedures from receipt of a question or complaint by telephone, e-mail, FAX, or letter to complete resolution.  What is the normal turn-around time to reply to each type of inquiry?

c. For the past year, provide the following:

1) the total number of inquiries handled by the Customer Service department, 

2) the average hold time, 

3) the abandoned call rate,

4) percent of telephone inquiries resolved during the initial call,

5) percent of telephone inquiries resolved within 24 hours of initial call.

6) total number of e-mail inquiries,

7) average time that e-mail responses were answered.

d. If applicable, provide information about any specialized telephone/computer system used by your Customer Service area.

e. Are calls to the Customer Service department routinely documented?  If so, how?

f. What are the current staffing levels in the customer service area?  Include information regarding the number of staff and telephone lines that will be assigned and/or dedicated to the Wisconsin programs.  Will the same Customer Service staff be responsible for answering both ERA and Commuter Benefits questions?  Will hiring additional Customer Service staff be necessary to accommodate the needs of the Wisconsin program?  If so, how many?

g. How is staff trained to respond questions and problems relating to Section 125 and Section 132 plans?  Provide sample materials.  

h. Participants who feel that their questions or issues have not been properly addressed by Customer Service staff may file a formal complaint or appeal.  Provide a written summary of the procedures that will be followed to adequately and appropriately review, evaluate and resolve complaints and/or appeals in a timely manner.  Include information about the staff involved in the complaint resolution process and the documentation that is used to make a determination.  Describe the manner in which you intend to report complaint and grievance procedure results to the Department.  Include an example of a determination letter that will be provided to a participant explaining the approval or denial of an appeal.

i. Describe experience that your company has had in administering complaint resolution/grievance procedures including the average number of complaints filed annually, tracking mechanisms used, speed of resolution, and the number/percent appealed beyond first level resolution for your current business.  

j. The Administrator will be required to conduct an annual customer satisfaction survey (random sample) of program participants.  (See Exhibit C.)  Provide detail of your experience in providing this type of service.  Provide a sample of a survey that has been conducted for a client and the results of that survey.

4.2.5 Program Information and Communication
The Administrator may be asked to develop informational bulletins, brochures, or newsletters directed to employers and/or employees.  The Department retains approval rights of all material prior to distribution to employers or employees.  Provide the following information for both the ERA program and the Commuter Benefits program.

a. Describe the informational materials that may be used to ensure all eligible employees are aware of and offered enrollment in each program.  Provide examples of materials such as brochures, forms, video presentations, posters, internet sites, e-mail messages, etc., that may be used to communicate program information to ensure that all eligible employees are aware of and understand the programs.

b. Describe your plan for providing continuing service (e.g., training, problem-solving) to employers in all geographical areas of the State.  Include an example of the written procedures that may be provided to employers.  If available, describe your capabilities for video conferencing or on-line interactive training options. 

c. Describe the information that will be available to employees, employers and the Department on your internet site.  Will a site be developed specifically for the State of Wisconsin plan?  Will participants' personal account information be available to program participants through the site?  Provide the evaluation committee with access to a demonstration site that illustrates the capabilities of your internet site, if available.

d. Describe the information that will be available to employees through your IVR system.  Will a site be developed specifically for the State of Wisconsin plan?  Will participants' personal account information be available to program participants?  Provide the evaluation committee with access to a demonstration site that illustrates the capabilities of your IVR system, if available.

e. How will user IDs and passwords used to access participants information be controlled and monitored?  Who will be responsible for resolving internet/IVR access problems (password and authorization problems, slow response time, system down-time, etc.)?

f. Do you collect e-mail addresses for communicating with participants?  If so, what types of communications may be sent to participants via e-mail?

4.2.6
Services Provided to the Department
The Department works directly with the Administrator on all administrative matters. The Administrator must provide technical and legal expertise to advise the Department on issues relating to the programs.  The Department must have real-time access to the Administrator’s record-keeping system via the internet.  Access includes the ability to view participant and total plan data and to generate standard reports.  Reports must be provided to the Department to ensure effective monitoring of all aspects of the program.

a. 
List any administrative tasks described in Exhibits A and B that are not included in your cost proposal.

b. Describe how you will monitor the development of and provide advice concerning state or federal regulations or legislation that may affect the programs.

c. Provide information about the legal and technical staff that will be available to the Department for advice and consultation as needed for program administration.

d. Provide detail of your ability to provide the Department with access to participants’ records and regular reports via the internet.  List the information or data that is available.  Provide a demonstration site, if available.

e. Detail your capabilities in producing the reports listed in the Performance Standards and Guarantees. (See Exhibit D.)  Provide samples of any similar reports that you currently provide for clients.

f. Provide a description and example of reports other than those specified in the Exhibit D that you recommend be made available to the Department.

4.2.7  Performance Standards and Penalties
The Administrator will be required to meet performance standards and penalties that may include, but not be limited to, those stated in the Performance Standards and Guarantees (See Exhibit D). 

a.
Describe the procedure that will be followed to ensure performance standards as described in the Exhibit D are met and properly reported.  Include a sample report that will be provided to the Department to demonstrate how the performance standards will be monitored.

b. Do you have any contracts with other clients which incorporate a penalty for not meeting performance standards?  If yes, indicate the types of performance guarantee agreements you have entered into previously and your ability to provide these arrangements to the Department.

c. List any performance measurements your organization currently uses to evaluate claims processing volume, accuracy, turnaround time, etc.  Specify how these measurements are derived.

4.2.8
Implementation Plan
a.
Provide a detailed timeline of your plan to implement the ERA and Commuter Benefits programs.  Include a description of the activities and considerations necessary for an orderly and controlled transition.

b. Identify the staff members by area of expertise who will be assigned to the implementation team.  

c. What is the minimum amount of preparation time you believe is necessary to effectively and efficiently implement the ERA and Commuter Benefits programs by January 1, 2005?

4.2.9
Debit Card
The State does not currently offer a debit card option to participants.  For information purposes only, please provide the following information:

a.
the type(s) of claims that may be paid using a debit card,

b.
the processes/systems that will be used for adjudicating claims (provide a systems diagram and data flowchart for the interaction that occurs with the debit card vendor),

c.
the processes or systems that will be subcontracted to a third-party vendor,

d.
the controls employed to prohibit debit card overpayments during a plan year crossover,

e.
the controls used to avoid payment of ineligible claims,

f.
the process for recovering overpayments or ineligible claims,

g.
the debit card suspension/reinstatement process,

h.
communications that are provided to eligible employees, employers and potential merchants informing them of the card (Provide a copy of the Terms and Condition, if applicable, that will be issued with the debit card to a participant.),

i.
any fees that will be charged directly to the participant,

j.
any current process improvement or future enhancement being developed for the debit card.

k.
Provide two references for clients who are currently offering a debit card option.
